
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE AGENDA 
 
Town Hall Council Chambers  June 19, 2017 at 6:00pm  
30 South Main Street  Town Council Monthly Meeting  
Weaverville, N.C. 28787 
 

 

1. Call to Order............................................................................................................................ Mayor Sherrill 
   
2. Approval / Adjustments to the Agenda................................................................................. Mayor Sherrill 
   
3. Approval of Minutes................................................................................................................ 

A. May 9, 2017 Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 
B. May 15, 2017 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Mayor Sherrill 
 

   
4. General Public Comments  
   
5. Consent Agenda....................................................................................................................... 

Motion to approve the consent agenda 
Mayor Sherrill 
 

 A. Monthly Tax Report 
Town Manager recommends approval of report. 

 

 B. Tax Releases and Refunds 
Town Tax Collector requests approval of these tax releases and refunds. 

 

 C. Set Filing Fee for Municipal Elections  
Approval of resolution setting municipal election filing fee is requested 

 

 D. Budget Amendment 
Approval of a budget amendment to move $32,000 from Recreation to Sanitation is requested 

 

 E. Annexation Petition/Initial Zoning - Shakamar Investment Group - 8 Acres on Reems Creek Rd 
Adoption of the attached resolution with direction to Town Clerk and Planning & Zoning is requested 

 

 F. Request to Declare Surplus Property and Approve Disposition Methods – Fire Department  
Town Manager recommends disposition of surplus personal property as indicted 

 

   
6. Discussion & Action Items:  

 A. Adoption of FY2017-2018 Budget Ordinance and Fee Schedule.................................................... Town Council 
 B. ASPCA Waterline Extension Acceptance and Staff Level Approval................................................ Public Works 
 C. Creekside Phase III Waterline Extension Acceptance and Staff Level Approval.............................. Public Works 
 D. Board Appointments – Zoning Board of Adjustment....................................................................... Mayor 
 E. 44 Central Avenue - Subdivision – Approval of Concept and Preliminary Plan............................. Town Planner 
 F. Update on Table of Uses................................................................................................................... Town Planner 
    
7. Employee Recognition and Town Manager's Report ............................................................... Town Manager 

8. Closed Session 
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the Town's attorney; 
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(5) to establish or instruct Town staff concerning the position to be 
taken by the Town on the acquisition of real property and the amount of compensation and other 
material terms of an employment contract or proposed contract; 
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, 
fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of employment of public officer or employee. 

 

 

9. Adjournment.................................................................................................................................... Mayor Sherrill 

 

1



 

 
Page 1 of 3  May 9, 2017  
  Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 
 

            MINUTES 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA TUESDAY, May 9, 2017 

 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met on Tuesday, May 9, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. in the Training 
Room within Weaverville Fire Department at 3 Monticello Road, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, Councilman Doug 
Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Public Works Director Tony Laughter 
and Planning Director James Eller. Police Chief Greg Stephens was absent. 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Sherrill called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Town Manager Selena Coffey distributed out to Town Council, Town of Weaverville mugs as a token of 
appreciation for Public Service Appreciation week.  

2. Retiree Health Insurance Discussion 
Town Council determined that since health insurance has become significantly more expensive in recent 
years and with future costs for current employees alone being uncertain, it would be irresponsible for 
the Town of Weaverville to continue to provide this undefined benefit (retiree health insurance) to 
future employees. Based on Town Council’s discussion, Town Manager Selena Coffey recommended 
that the personnel policy be revised to reflect that future employees not be offered retiree health 
insurance. Town Council came to a consensus that as of July 1, 2017, new Town of Weaverville 
employees will not be eligible for retiree health insurance. There was consensus among Councilmen to 
have the Town Manager and Town Attorney work on a revision to the Town's Personnel Policy to 
eliminate the benefit for anyone hired after July 1, 2017. 
   

3. Domestic Partnership Insurance 
Town Manager Selena Coffey discussed the option of allowing domestic partners to be covered under 
the Town of Weaverville’s insurance just like a spouse. The current requirement that if an employee's 
spouse has insurance available through his or her employer than the spouse is not eligible for health 
insurance through the Town. The same would apply for domestic partners. At this time it appears that 
only one employee has said they could possibly benefit this option. Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson 
suggests the following definition a domestic partnership: Two individuals who reached the age of 
majority and live together in a non-marital but a long term relationship of indefinite duration with 
exclusive mutual commitment in which the partners share the necessities of life and are financially 
interdependent. Town Council came to a 4-1 consensus that domestic partnership insurance should be 
allowed at this time. Councilman Jackson opposed expanding this benefit at this time and would prefer 
to see it presented in a broader review of the Town's compensation package. The Town Attorney and 
Town Manager will work together for an appropriate revision to the Town's Personnel Policy and bring 
back the same for Council's consideration.  
 

2



 

 
Page 2 of 3  May 9, 2017  
  Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 
 

4. Additional Funding for Relief Firefighters 
Town Manager Selena Coffey proposed in this year’s budget extra funds for additional relief 
firefighters. These funds would allow the Weaverville Fire Department to maintain shifts of 5 personnel 
each day if a fulltime employee is out, otherwise it would allow for 6 employees on each shift. Fire 
Chief Ted Williams mentioned that if the Town receives the SAFER grant then they would only need 
half the amount requested in this year’s budget for relief firefighters. As of right now there are 5 relief 
firefighters, who get paid an hourly rate of $10. At least 3 of the relief firefighters would like to become 
fulltime. With the additional relief firefighters from these funds, it will help increase the amount of 
coverage and services provided to the residents of the Town of Weaverville. Fire Chief Williams 
believes that the county fire tax will not be changed.  No consensus was made on the additional funding 
and the Town Manager proposed bringing the SAFER grant back for discussion at a future budget 
workshop. 
 

5. Legal Services Funding 
Town Manager Selena Coffey informed Town Council that she has included an additional $10,000 to 
this year’s budget for legal services. She reviewed prior years' cost of legal services and discussed some 
of the ways in which it has been beneficial to have an in-house attorney. Town Manager recommended 
that Council have a performance review with Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson to determine what they 
think is the best option. Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that last year was kind of an experiment for 
the Town, since there has never been an in house attorney employed. She thinks that the project lists 
coming up in the next year would justify having an in-house attorney, including specifically the re-
codification project which will comprehensively look at the Town's Code of Ordinance which has not 
been done since 1998. Councilman Fitzsimmons stated that having an in-house attorney has been 
significantly beneficial with a cost comparable to prior years. Councilman Penley shared the same view 
noting that having an in-house attorney has been very crucial with helping maintain operations going on 
in the Town. Town Manager Coffey also, suggested that there could be other ways to compensate the 
Town Attorney outside of providing the full $10,000 in salary, including a potential match to a 401k 
program, offsetting some of her legal expenses, etc. Town Attorney Jackson indicated that she was 
happy to place a closed session on Council's agenda at any time that they would like to conduct a review 
and the consensus was to do that at the Council's May 15, 2017 regular meeting agenda.  
 

6. Stipend for Town Council Special-Called Meetings 
Town Manager Selena Coffey discussed her analysis of comparable towns’ governing body stipend with 
Council. Her research showed that, compared to other comparable towns, the Weaverville Mayor 
stipend is 21.6% below average and the Weaverville Town Council is 21.5% below average. Town 
Manager proposed an additional stipend total of $3,600 for fiscal year or $50 per special-called meeting 
for council members, which would still remain below average. Councilman Nagle stated that, while it is 
appreciated, the stipend is more of a gesture and that it would be better off going to the firefighters.  
Councilman Jackson mentioned that additional stipends for Council would be appreciated and are well 
deserved but thinks that right now it isn’t good timing with the possibility of taxes increasing. 
Councilman Dearth noted that having this stipend be calculated based on the number of special called 
meetings might not be the best option. Conversation was leaning toward excluding the stipend, however 
no consensus was made.    
 

7. Other Personnel Related Discussions raised by Town Council 
None 
 

3



 

 
Page 3 of 3  May 9, 2017  
  Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 
 

8. Other Discussion/Action 
 
Town Council discussed the proposed tax rate and where it should be set since tax assessments have 
increased this year. Councilman Nagle noted that the Town of Weaverville is becoming an expensive 
community where only the wealthiest people can reside and he doesn’t agree with the proposed tax rate 
of 40 cents. Councilman Fitzsimmons stated that this proposed tax rate would make us one of the 
highest tax rates in the state and that with county taxes increasing, the Town of Weaverville might think 
to lower the rate to the revenue neutral rate. Councilman Jackson mentioned that the capital 
expenditures could come out of the Capital Reserve Fund instead of the General Fund, which would 
allow for the tax rate to be lowered. Councilman Penley suggested that this might be a good year to get 
caught up on all the capital expenditures and improvements. Town Manager Selena Coffey noted that 
the budget is continuing to evolve and stated that she would be working to finalize the budget with each 
of the councilmembers comments in mind. She recommended another budget workshop to be held and 
suggested June 1, 2017 for the workshop. 
 
After consulting their schedules Council set a special called budget workshop for Thursday, June 
1 at 5:30 p.m. at the Fire Department Training Room.  
 

9. Adjournment 
Councilman Penley made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted to adjourn 
the Council’s meeting at 6:53 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

 

4



 

 
Page 1 of 5  May 15, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

            MINUTES 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA MONDAY, May 15, 2017 

 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, May 15, 2017, 
at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North 
Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, Councilman Doug 
Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Police Chief Greg Stephens, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer 
Tonya Dozier and Public Works Director Tony Laughter. 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Sherrill called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Mayor Sherrill asked to add a Proclamation Honoring our Police Department on National Police Week, 
May 14-20, 2017 for Item D on the Consent Agenda. 
Councilman Dearth made a motion to approve the agenda with the aforementioned revision. 
Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley made the motion to approve the minutes from April 11, 2017 Town 
Council Special-Called Budget Workshop and April 17, 2017 Town Council Meeting as presented. 
Councilman Jackson seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. Employee Recognition 
Town Manager Selena Coffey recognized Fire Chief Ted Williams on graduating from his Municipal 
Administration Class at the School of Government and Senior Police Officer Michelle Cagle for her 
great instincts and phenomenal work in apprehending the bank robbery suspect in four minutes on May 
10, 2017 at Weaver Boulevard. Police Chief Greg Stephens also, acknowledged Senior Police Officer 
Cagle for her outstanding work during the arrest and great service she provides to the residents of 
Weaverville every day.   
 

5. General Public Comment 
Public comments were received as follows: 
 
Louis Accornero, 50 Highland Pointe Drive, commented on how great both the Weaverville Stone Signs 
look, he really appreciates the wonderful amenities provided by the Town, and he feels very fortunate to 
live in Weaverville, where the Public Works Department, Police Department and Fire Department take 
all steps necessary to make the residents of Weaverville feel safe and secure.  
  

5



 

 
Page 2 of 5  May 15, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
Motion to approve the consent agenda 
 
A. Monthly Tax Report 

Town Manager recommends approval of report. 
B. Ordinance for Road Closures for Music on Main Event 

Approval of ordinance requested. 
C. Budget Amendment for Town Match on Fire Department SCBA Equipment 

Town Manager recommends approval of budget amendments to fund the SCBA grant match of 
$18,618 

D. Proclamation Honoring our Police Department on National Police Week, May 14-20, 2017 
[added at adjustment of the agenda] 
 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilman Nagle 
seconded the motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda. 
 

7. Discussion and Action Items 
 
A. Town Walk Subdivision – Approval of Final Plat and Setting of Improvement Guaranty 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that the Town Walk subdivision has been found to comply with 
the Town’s subdivision ordinance as it relates to major subdivisions. He asked Town Council to set an 
improvement guaranty to ensure the necessary infrastructure is completed in accordance with final plat 
approval as per 25-83(e)(1)(A). This improvement guaranty may be set at 125% of the cost of the 
construction of the required improvements.  The required improvements in this case are individual water 
and sewer taps on each lot created.  Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that each lot would total 
$3,800 for sewer and road cut permit fees to M.S.D. and water tap fees, at 125% of the cost, this makes 
an improvement guaranty of $28,500. This will still leave a capacity completion fee or facility fee, and 
meter fee that the lot owners would be responsible for.  
 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve the final plat conditioned upon the posting of an 
improvement guaranty of the $28,500. Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley seconded the motion. The 
motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 
 
B. Waterline Extension and Capacity Request for 3 Garrison Road 
Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed that the Town has received an application for a 
waterline extension at 3 Garrison Road for Serota Mars Hill, LLC, which is located in the Town limits 
of Weaverville. The extension that will be necessary is a 6-inch ductile iron waterline and at least one 
fire hydrant for a proposed maximum committed capacity of 4,000 gallons per day. The request is for an 
existing single-family residential unit, two 4-unit apartment buildings and possible commercial 
development. This proposed waterline extension would benefit the Town in the effort to upgrade that 
part of the Town’s water system.  
 
Councilman Dearth made a motion to approve the waterline extension and capacity requested. 
Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 
 
 
 

6



 

 
Page 3 of 5  May 15, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

C. North Asheville Baptist Church Waterline Extension Acceptance and Staff Level Approval 
Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed that the North Asheville Baptist Church project has 
progressed such that we expect that all Town acceptance criteria for the waterline, vault and vault drain 
will be completed within the next few weeks. He is requesting that Town Council accept the waterline 
extension and related improvements into the Town’s water system subject to stall level approval by 
Public Works Director, Town Manager and Town Attorney. Public Works Director Laughter urges 
Town Council to set an improvement defects guaranty at $8,000 to cover any defects that might be 
discovered within three years of our acceptance. 
  
Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley made a motion to approve the waterline extension and related 
improvements into the Town’s water system subject to staff level approval, and set an improvement 
defects guaranty amount at $8,000. Councilman Jackson seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council. 
 
D. Monticello Apartments Waterline Extension Acceptance and Staff Level Approval 
Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed that the Monticello Apartments, Weaverville 
Apartments, and Hawthorne at Weaverville is nearing completion and we expect that all Town 
acceptance criteria for the waterline, vault and vault drain will be completed within the next few weeks. 
Therefore, the Public Works Director is requesting that Town Council accept the waterline extension 
and related improvements into the Town’s water system subject to stall level approval by Public Works 
Director, Town Manager and Town Attorney. He also urges Town Council to set an improvement 
defects guaranty at $4,000 to cover any defects that might be discovered within three years of our 
acceptance. 

Councilman Fitzsimmons made a motion to approve the waterline extension and related improvements 
into the Town’s water system subject to staff level approval, and set an improvement defects guaranty 
amount at $4,000. Councilman Nagle seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of 
Council. 

8. Public Hearing and Action on FY 2017-2018 Proposed Budget 
 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Penley made the motion to enter into Public Hearing; Councilman Nagle 
seconded and all voted in favor of opening the Public Hearing. 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey opened the Public Hearing by mentioning that the proposed budget was 
posted to the Town’s website on April 17 and in accordance with Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act published on April 26, 2017.  Since the last budget workshop there hasn’t been a lot 
changed to the budget so she was going to discuss the General Fund and Water Fund Budget highlights 
from her PowerPoint before public comment. As of April 17, 2017, the Buncombe County Tax 
Department has the Town of Weaverville’s revaluation estimated at $824.57 million and based on the 
N.C. Treasurer’s Office formula the revenue neutral rate is .3622 per $100 valuation.  The General Fund 
has a total of $6.683 million and a proposed tax rate at $0.40. This lowers the current tax rate of $0.44 
by $0.04, predicated on no change to the fire tax rate. The major expenditures in the General Fund 
budget are vehicle replacements for Police Department, Fire Department and Public Works, additional 
funding for relief firefighters and legal services for major projects, increase of approximately 8% for 
employee health insurance, proposed additional stipend for Council members per special-called 
meeting,  2nd year of Street Maintenance Plan and matching Greenways funding of $60,000. The Water 
Fund budget total is $2.074 million, an increase of 22% over FY 2017. A proposed 2% increase in water 

7



 

 
Page 4 of 5  May 15, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

rates is suggested per a prior water study and approximately $152,500 fund balance appropriated. The 
Water Fund budget expenditures are additional funding for replacement of water meters, funding for 
repairs to Ox Creek reservoir exterior concrete and water plant facility, and funding for replacements of 
a wastewater tanker truck and 8-year old truck with excessive repairs and mileage. Town Manager 
Selena Coffey mentioned that there are still some outstanding issues needing to be discussed like the 
utilization of $2.69 million in capital reserve, a potential water plant expansion, the SAFER Grant for 
the Fire Department and fire district tax rate, and revenue estimates. The PowerPoint from the May 15, 
2017 meeting is attached.  
 
Councilman Andrew Nagle commented that with the Town’s General Reserve fund around $5.1 million, 
we have over 80% of our annual revenue saved. The State of N.C. only requires you to have 8% of 
annual revenue saved and the Town of Weaverville recommends 40%. Based on this he suggests using 
these funds for the Town’s capital improvements, which would allow the tax rate to be lowered to 
$0.37.  
 
Mayor Sherrill then invited the public to comment. The following people spoke during the public 
hearing on the budget: 
 
Bernie Conrad, 7 AB Emblem Drive, commented on his issues with the proposed budget. He is 
concerned that since the assessed value of property has increased by approximately 30% and the 
proposed tax rate is $0.40, the taxes that Weaverville collects from property owners will increase by 
18% from last year and over 26% prior to the tax increase in 2016. He doesn’t believe that this is 
revenue neutral and in order to get there, the tax rate should be $0.35. He mentioned that the Town 
should consider increasing the tax base on housing projects already in development, instead of 
burdening current residents with these extra costs. Why not impose impact fees on developers like other 
towns do? Also, he states that the Town has almost enough money set aside to operate for a year without 
collecting any property taxes. We don’t need to have or almost have the highest tax rate in the state, it 
will only make it harder for the next generation to live in Weaverville.  The Town needs to manage at 
current budget levels and live within its means. He does greatly appreciate all the people who work for 
the Town.  
 
There being no other citizens wishing to provide comment on the proposed budget, Vice 
Mayor/Councilman Penley made the motion to close the Public Hearing; Councilman Nagle seconded 
and all voted in favor of closing the Public Hearing. 
 

9. Town Manager’s Report 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s Report to Council including that the planning 
for our July 4th event has been completed with Joe Lasher Jr. performing, the Music on Main event will 
be held on June 23rd, Al Root will be resigning from the Zoning Board of Adjustments after the June 
meeting, Weaverville’s Street Projects are underway and the Planning and Zoning Board would like to 
schedule a meeting with Town Council to present and review the Table of Uses they have been working 
on. Town Council suggested June 27 at 6 pm as their best choice or June 22 at 6pm, either choice would 
be held at the Weaverville Fire Department. 
 

8



 

 
Page 5 of 5  May 15, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

Mayor Dottie Sherrill personally, along with Town Council expressed their deepest sympathy for the 
loss of Town resident, Jill Britton. She passed away this past weekend and our thoughts and prayers go 
out to her family at this time.  
 

10. Closed Session 
 
Councilman Penley made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(5) 
to establish or instruct staff on the position to be taken regarding the amount of compensation or other 
material terms of an employment contract and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to consider the 
qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, of conditions of 
employment of a public officer or employee, or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge or grievance. 
Councilman Jackson seconded the motion and by a unanimous vote Council entered into closed session. 
 
[CLOSED SESSION] 
 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to exit closed session. Councilman Dearth seconded and all voted 
unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 

11. Adjournment 
Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Dearth seconded and all voted to 
adjourn the Council’s meeting at 7:35 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

 

9



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 19, 2017   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:   Town Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of June 13, 2017. You 
will note that the collection rate is currently 98.83%.  The Tax Collector reports that she 
has worked with the Town Attorney on letters going out last week to the property owners 
that have delinquent taxes. 

 

This report is provided for information only.  
No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

10



11



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 19, 2017   

SUBJECT: Tax Releases and Refunds 

PRESENTER:   Town Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Buncombe County has just settled an appeal from Lowes Home Centers, Inc., for its 
property at 24 Northridge Commons Parkway (PIN 9733-80-6106). This appeal settlement 
has resulted in a lowering of Lowes' property valuation for 2015 and 2016 and Buncombe 
County has processed appropriate tax releases and refunds. Town Council is requested to 
approve corresponding tax releases and refunds as follows: 

(1) a release of $462,900 from the valuation of PIN 9733-80-6106 for 2015 and 2016; and 
(2) refunds of $1,944.18 for 2015 and $2,036.76 for 2016, totaling $3,980.94. 

 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approve the tax release and refund as recommended by 
Buncombe County. This action could be in the form of the following motion:  

I move that $462,900 in valuation be released from PIN 9733-80-6106 for 2015 and 
2016 and that $3,980.94 be refunded to Lowes Home Centers, Inc. 

 

 

  

12



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  June 19, 2017  

SUBJECT: Resolution Setting Election Filing Fees for Municipal Elections 
  
PRESENTER:   Town Attorney/Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS:  Proposed Resolution 
 

DESCRIPTION:   

In accordance with N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-294.2(e), Town Council is required to set the 
election filing fees for the municipal elections that will be held this year.  This statute 
requires that the fee be set at not less than $5.00 nor more than one percent (1%) of 
the annual salary of the office sought.  

The Town Manager recommends that the election fee be set at $20.00.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council's action to set the municipal election filing fee is requested through the 
adoption of the proposed resolution.  

13



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
RESOLUTION SETTING ELECTION FILING FEE  

FOR MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS 
 
 WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-294.2(e) requires that the Town Council of the 
Town of Weaverville set the filing fee for candidates in a municipal election; and 
 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-294.2(e) also requires that the fee be set at not less 
than $5.00 nor more than one percent (1%) of the annual salary of the office sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, the annual salary of the mayor is $4,200.00 and the annual salary of a 

member of Town Council is $3,000.00;  
 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to set the filing fee for all municipal elections within 
the Town of Weaverville at $20.00 per filing; 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH 
CAROLINA, ACTING THROUGH ITS COUNCIL MEMBERS, that: 
 

1. The election filing fee for all candidates for municipal election within the Town of 
Weaverville is hereby set at $20.00 per filing; 

2. This resolution is effective for the municipal elections to be held in 2017 and for all 
subsequent municipal elections until such time as Town Council takes subsequent 
action to set or reset municipal election filing fees or until the authority of Town 
Council to set such fees has been legislatively rescinded. 

 
ADOPTED this 19th day of June, 2017. 

 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
     Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Derek Huninghake, Town Clerk 

14



Budget Amendment 

Town of Weaverville 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 19, 2017  
 

SUBJECT:   Budget Amendment – Public Works transfer for Salary/Wage expense  

 
PRESENTER:   Town Finance Director 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Budget Amendment  

 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Due to a re-allocation of employees within the Public Works division, it is necessary to transfer 
$32,000 in funds from the Recreation Department to the Sanitation Department in order to cover 
Salary/Wage expenses through the end of the 2017 fiscal year.  Town Council approval is required 
for this budget amendment based on the FY2017 Budget Ordinance (Section 5), which states that 
amounts transferred between funds and/or exceeding $5,000 must be approved by Town Council.   

 

 

  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  

The Town Finance Director recommends Town Council’s approval of the attached budget 
amendment transferring $32,000 from the Recreation Department to the Sanitation Department in 
order to cover Salary/Wage expense for FY17. 

  

 

 

 

Potential motion:   
I move that Town Council authorize the approval of the budget amendment, which transfers $32,000 
from the Recreation Department to the Sanitation Department, in order to cover Salary expense for 
FY17.  

15



Budget Amendment 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-470-471-12100  Salaries & Wages (Sanitation)  $32,000 
     
     
     
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-600-612-12100  Salaries & Wages (Recreation)                           $32,000 
     
     
     
     
     
     

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment. 

A budget amendment is necessary to transfer funds from the Recreation Department to the 
Sanitation Department in order to cover Salary/Wage expenditures due to re-allocation of 
employees within the Public Works division. 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 5: 
A. He/she may transfer amounts between line items, expenditures and revenues, within a department without limitation and 

without a report being required. 
B. He/she may transfer amounts up to $5,000 between departments within any one division, including contingency 

appropriations, within the same fund during any month. For the purpose of this ordinance, the Town of Weaverville has the 
following divisions: Public Works, Public Safety, and General Government. The Budget Officer must make an official report 
on such transfers at the next regular meeting of the Governing Board. Transfers between divisions would require action of 
the Governing Board. 

C. He/she may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by the Governing Board in the Budget Ordinance 
as amended. 

06/14/2017

06/14/2017

16



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

June 19, 2017  

Voluntary Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request of 
Shakamar Investment Group, LLC for 7.78 Acres on Reems 
Creek Road 

Town Attorney/Town Clerk 

Voluntary Annexation Petition and Data Sheet 
Certificate of Authority 
Deed and GIS Map 
Application - Zoning Map Amendment Requesting R-2 Zoning 
Proposed Resolution 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town is in receipt of a voluntary annexation petition from Shakamar Investment 
Group, LLC, the owner of a 7.78-acre unimproved tract on Reems Creek Road. This 
property is contiguous to the Town’s existing municipal boundaries. Together with this 
application Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, also submitted a zoning map amendment 
application requesting an initial zoning of R-2 if the property is to be annexed into the 
Town’s municipal limits. 

The first steps in the annexation process is to request that the Town Clerk investigate the 
sufficiency of the annexation petition and to send the initial zoning request to the Planning 
and Zoning Board for review and recommendation. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is requested to adopt the attached resolution which (1) directs the Town 
Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the annexation petition and submit a Certificate of 
Sufficiency to Town Council at its July 17, 2017, regular meeting, and (2) directs the 
Town Planner to place the Application for a Zoning Map Amendment on the Planning 
and Zoning Board’s next regular agenda so that the requested zoning district can be 
reviewed for consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and a 
recommendation on same can be forwarded back to Town Council at such time as a 
public hearing is held on the matter.  

17



RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE THE SUFFICIENCY  
OF A VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION PETITION 2017-1 AND SENDING THE ASSOCIATED 

INITIAL ZONING REQUEST TO THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD  
FOR REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION 

WHEREAS, a petition from Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, was received by the 
Town of Weaverville on May 25, 2017, requesting voluntary annexation of a 7.78-acre 
tract of land located on Reems Creek Road, Weaverville, NC, and which is described in that 
deed to Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, recorded in Book 5550 at Page 1307, and 
further identified as Buncombe County Parcel Number 9742-94-9526; and 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition 
shall be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take 
place; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville is also in receipt of an application for a zoning 
map amendment request an R-2 zoning classification for the property to be annexed; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, having first considered 
the zoning request on June 19, 2017, deems it advisable to proceed in response to this 
request for annexation and initial zoning; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Weaverville that: 

1. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-
reference petition and to certify to Town Council the result of his investigation;

2. That the Town Planner is directed to place the application for initial zoning of R-2
on the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board’s next agenda so that the Board can
review the requested zoning for consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Land
Use Plan and forward a recommendation to Town Council prior to or at a public
hearing that may subsequently be held on this matter.

THIS the 19th day of June, 2017. 

_________________________________________________________ 
DOTTIE SHERRILL, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

_________________________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

18



Sh
ak

am
ar 

An
ne

xa
tio

n A
rea

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 D
eL

orm
e, 

US
GS

, I
nte

rm
ap

, IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
P, 

NR
Ca

n,
Es

ri J
ap

an
, M

ET
I, E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
 E

sri
 K

ore
a, 

Es
ri (

Th
ail

an
d),

Ju
ne

 13
, 2

01
7

0
0.0

75
0.1

5
0.0

37
5

mi

0
0.1

0.2
0.0

5
km

1:4
,51

4

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: June 19, 2017 

SUBJECT: Request to Declare Surplus Property and Approve Disposition 
Methods – Fire Department  

PRESENTER:  Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: List of Surplus Personal Property 
Proposed Resolution 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Fire Chief has recently identified several items of personal property that are no longer needed 
by the Fire Department. A list of those items is attached.  

Town Manager has the authority under Town Code §§ 2-236 through 2-238 to dispose of surplus 
personal property as long as the item or group of items has a fair market value of less than $5,000, 
the property is no longer necessary for the conduct of public business, and sound property 
management principles and financial considerations indicate that the interest of the Town would 
best be served by disposing of the property. This authority, however, does not allow the Town 
Manager to authorize the donation of any property. 

Most of the items on the list are now obsolete and not needed given the new equipment that the 
Fire Department was able to obtain over the last few years. While these items are in many cases out 
of date, they could be used by other fire departments, rescue squads or similar agencies.  The Town 
Manager and Fire Chief, therefore, recommended that the items marked for donation on the 
attached list be declared surplus and donated pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-280.  While the 
Town Manager has been granted certain statutory and local authority to dispose of surplus 
property, Town Council must authorize all donations by resolution.   

Other items have missing parts or are no longer operational. These items are considered worthless 
and will be scrapped and disposed of at the Buncombe County landfill and/or recycling center.  

The Fire Chief does believe that the three positive pressure ventilation fans (the last item shown 
on the list) have some value and could be sold for approximately $200 each on www.govdeals.com, 
an online auction site for government surplus property. The Town Manager wanted to make Town 
Council aware that she intends to exercise her authority to sell these fans in this manner. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Town Manager requests adoption of the proposed resolution which will declare all items 
indicated as surplus property and allow her and the Fire Chief to dispose of the surplus personal 
property as indicated. 

28



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY AS SURPLUS 

AND AUTHORIZING ITS DISPOSITION 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville owns certain items of personal property, identified and 
described on the attached list, which the Town Manager and the Fire Chief have determined to be of 
little value and no longer needed for Town operations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Manager has the authority under Town Code §§ 2-236 through 2-238 
to dispose of surplus personal property as long as the item or group of items has a fair market value 
of less than $5,000, the property is no longer necessary for the conduct of public business, and 
sound property management principles and financial considerations indicate that the interest of the 
Town would best be served by disposing of the property;  
 
 WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-280 allows the Town to donate surplus personal property 
to another governmental unit or a nonprofit organization properly incorporated within the United 
States; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a notice concerning the possible adoption of a resolution approving the 
donation of certain personal property was posted on June 14, 2017, in compliance with N.C. Gen. 
Stat. § 160A-280; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council agrees with its Manager's assessment that all of the items 
described on the attached list should be declared as surplus and disposed of; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville 
that: 
 

1. All personal property described on the attached list is declared as surplus property; 
 

2. The Town Manager and the Fire Chief are authorized to donate all of those items that are 
marked for donation on the attached list to any governmental unit within the United States 
or any nonprofit organization organized within the United States that is carrying out a 
public purpose; and  
 

3. The Town Manager, Fire Chief, or designee, is authorized to dispose of all of the items that 
are marked as scrap on the attached list by depositing them in the Buncombe County 
landfill and/or recycling center; and 
 

4. The Town Manager is hereby authorized to sell the three (3) positive pressure ventilation 
fans (valued estimated at $200 each) as she sees fit in accordance with applicable law and 
Town Code § 2-237. 

 
THIS the 19th day of June, 2017. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
DOTTIE SHERRILL, Mayor   ATTESTED BY: 
 

_____________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

29



Su
rp

lu
s P

er
so

na
l P

ro
pe

rt
y 

– 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
At

ta
ch

ed
 to

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

da
te

d 
Ju

ne
 1

9,
 2

01
7 

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 
DO

N
AT

E 
SC

RA
P 

SE
LL

 
13

 p
ai

r o
f t

ur
no

ut
 b

oo
ts

.  
(P

as
t 1

0-
ye

ar
 li

fe
sp

an
.) 

X 
 

 
1 

pa
ir 

of
 w

ild
la

nd
 b

oo
ts

. (
Pa

st
 1

0-
ye

ar
 li

fe
sp

an
.) 

X 
 

 
9 

pa
ir 

of
 tu

rn
ou

t p
an

ts
. (

Pa
st

 1
0-

ye
ar

 li
fe

sp
an

.) 
X 

 
 

6 
tu

rn
ou

t c
oa

ts
. (

Pa
st

 1
0-

ye
ar

 li
fe

sp
an

.) 
X 

 
 

22
 m

ed
ic

al
 h

ea
d/

ne
ck

 st
ab

ili
ze

rs
. (

N
ew

 st
yl

e 
us

ed
 in

 c
ou

nt
y 

sy
st

em
.) 

X 
 

 
26

 n
ec

k 
br

ac
es

. (
as

so
rt

ed
 si

ze
s.

 N
ew

 st
yl

e 
us

ed
 in

 c
ou

nt
y 

sy
st

em
.) 

X 
 

 
2 

m
an

ua
l s

uc
tio

n 
de

vi
ce

s. 
(R

ep
la

ce
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

 d
ev

ic
es

. O
bs

ol
et

e.
) 

X 
 

 
1 

Ha
re

 tr
ac

tio
n 

de
vi

ce
. (

le
g)

 (O
ld

 st
oc

k.
 R

ep
la

ce
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

er
 st

yl
es

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
ist

en
t i

n 
co

un
ty

 sy
st

em
.) 

X 
 

 
1 

Ha
lfB

ac
k 

tr
ac

tio
n 

de
vi

ce
. (

O
ld

 st
oc

k.
 R

ep
la

ce
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

er
 st

yl
es

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
ist

en
t i

n 
co

un
ty

 sy
st

em
.) 

X 
 

 
1 

le
g 

sp
lin

t k
it.

 (O
ld

 st
oc

k.
 R

ep
la

ce
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

er
 st

yl
es

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
ist

en
t i

n 
co

un
ty

 sy
st

em
.) 

X 
 

 
1 

M
at

rix
. (

Ad
ul

t/
ch

ild
 sp

lin
t k

it.
) (

O
ld

 st
oc

k.
 R

ep
la

ce
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

er
 st

yl
es

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
ist

en
t i

n 
co

un
ty

 sy
st

em
.) 

X 
 

 
25

 T
ra

ffi
c 

Ve
st

s.
 (D

oe
s n

ot
 m

ee
t c

ur
re

nt
 st

an
da

rd
s.

) 
X 

 
 

8 
su

pp
re

ss
io

n 
no

zz
le

s. 
(O

ld
 st

oc
k.

 N
ot

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
to

 re
pa

ir.
) 

X 
 

 
31

 S
co

tt
 A

irP
ac

ks
 -2

.2
 (P

as
t 1

5-
ye

ar
 li

fe
sp

an
.) 

X 
 

 
8 

Sc
ot

t A
irP

ak
 b

ra
ck

et
s (

Fi
ts

 A
irP

ak
s t

o 
Tr

uc
ks

. N
ot

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 n

ew
 A

irp
ak

s.
) 

X 
 

 
47

 S
co

tt
 b

ot
tle

s.
 (A

pp
ro

x.
 1

8 
m

on
th

s l
ef

t o
n 

hy
dr

os
ta

tic
 te

st
. N

ot
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 n
ew

 A
irp

ak
s.

) 
X 

 
 

20
 S

co
tt

 b
ot

tle
s.

 (O
ld

 st
yl

e 
bo

tt
le

s t
ha

t d
o 

no
t m

ee
t c

ur
re

nt
 st

an
da

rd
s.

) 
X 

 
 

52
 S

co
tt

 A
irP

ak
 M

as
ks

. (
6 

sm
al

l, 
35

 m
ed

iu
m

, 1
1 

la
rg

e)
 (P

as
t 1

5-
ye

ar
 li

fe
sp

an
; N

ot
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 n
ew

 A
irp

ak
s.

) 
X 

 
 

1 
Sc

ot
t A

irP
ac

k 
Ca

rr
yi

ng
 C

as
e.

 (N
ot

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 n

ew
 A

irp
ak

s.)
 

X 
 

 
1 

Pa
rt

ne
r K

12
 sa

w
. M

od
el

 K
12

00
. (

Ro
pe

 p
ul

l b
ro

ke
n.

 N
o 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t p

ar
t.)

 
 

X 
 

1 
St

ih
l C

ha
in

sa
w

. M
od

el
 0

25
. 1

0”
 b

ar
. (

Cr
an

kc
as

e 
le

ak
in

g.
  N

ot
 c

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

to
 re

pa
ir.

) 
 

X 
 

1 
Jo

ns
er

ed
 C

ha
in

sa
w

. M
od

el
 2

04
5 

Tu
rb

o.
 1

6”
 b

ar
. (

No
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
ar

ts
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

) 
 

X 
 

2 
Fo

am
 A

er
at

or
 T

ub
e.

 (1
-2

4”
 tu

be
, 1

-3
6”

 tu
be

.) 
(O

ld
 st

oc
k.

 N
o 

lo
ng

er
 u

se
 th

is 
st

yl
e.

) 
X 

 
 

1 
Ho

se
 c

la
m

p.
 (O

ld
 st

oc
k.

) (
N

ot
 c

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

to
 re

pa
ir.

) 
 

X 
 

1 
30

’ B
oo

st
er

 H
os

e.
 (1

 ¼
” 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
– 

bo
th

 e
nd

s.
) (

O
ld

 st
oc

k.
 N

o 
lo

ng
er

 u
se

 th
is 

st
yl

e.
) 

X 
 

 
1 

Fo
am

 In
du

ct
or

 u
ni

t. 
(O

ld
 st

oc
k.

 N
ot

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 n

ew
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t.)
 

X 
 

 
1 

50
’ w

in
ch

 c
ab

le
. (

3/
8”

 c
ab

le
 w

ith
 c

ap
tu

re
 h

oo
k.

 N
ot

 c
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
to

 re
pa

ir.
) 

X 
 

 
1 

se
t o

f r
em

ov
ab

le
 3

rd
 ro

w
 se

at
s f

or
 a

 2
00

4 
Ch

ev
y 

Ta
ho

e.
 (N

o 
lo

ng
er

 h
av

e 
Ch

ev
y 

Ta
ho

e.
)  

X 
 

 

30



DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 
DO

N
AT

E 
SC

RA
P 

SE
LL

 
3 

m
ou

nt
ab

le
 W

ar
n 

w
in

ch
es

.  
(M

iss
in

g 
co

nt
ro

ls.
 O

ld
 st

oc
k.

) 
X 

 
 

4 
Hi

gh
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

ai
r b

ag
s.

 (O
ld

 st
oc

k.
 C

an
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 b
e 

te
st

ed
 a

nd
 c

er
tif

ie
d.

) 
 

X 
 

Sh
ar

p.
 U

X-
A1

00
0.

 P
la

in
 p

ap
er

 In
kj

et
 F

ax
. (

Re
pl

ac
ed

 w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
op

ie
r/

pr
in

te
r/

fa
x.

) (
12

+ 
ye

ar
s o

ld
) 

X 
 

 
De

ll.
 C

om
pu

te
r m

on
ito

r. 
A5

50
1.

 (N
o 

lo
ng

er
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l.)
 

 
X 

 
De

ll.
 C

om
pu

te
r m

on
ito

r. 
A5

50
1.

 (N
o 

lo
ng

er
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l.)
 

 
X 

 
De

ll.
 C

om
pu

te
r m

on
ito

r. 
 (D

isp
la

y 
ba

d)
 (N

o 
lo

ng
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l.)

 
 

X 
 

De
ll 

De
sk

to
p.

 O
pt

ip
le

x 
79

0.
 (N

o 
lo

ng
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l.)

 
 

X 
 

De
ll 

ke
yb

oa
rd

.  
(W

ire
d 

de
vi

ce
s n

o 
lo

ng
er

 n
ee

de
d.

) 
X 

 
 

De
ll 

m
ou

se
.  

(W
ire

d 
de

vi
ce

s n
o 

lo
ng

er
 n

ee
de

d.
) 

X 
 

 
To

sh
ib

a 
La

pt
op

. S
at

el
lit

e 
25

95
XD

VD
. (

O
ld

 st
oc

k.
 S

ys
te

m
 n

ot
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l.)
 

 
X 

 
EZ

 D
UB

. C
D/

DV
D 

du
pl

ic
at

or
. (

M
od

el
 #

SH
W

-1
60

P6
SU

. N
ot

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l.)

 
 

X 
 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 D

isp
la

y 
bo

ar
d.

 (B
et

a 
Br

ig
ht

. M
od

el
 #

 1
19

6-
80

x7
-R

GB
-3

. M
iss

in
g 

po
w

er
 su

pp
ly

.) 
X 

 
 

Su
pe

r V
ac

 M
od

el
 #

71
8G

4 
Po

sit
iv

e 
Pr

es
su

re
 V

en
til

at
io

n 
Fa

ns
 Q

TY
. 3

 (o
bs

ol
et

e;
 tr

an
sit

io
ne

d 
to

 e
le

ct
ric

 P
PV

 fa
ns

) 
 

 
X 

 Re
v.

 6
/1

2/
17

 

31



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  June 19, 2017 

Subject: Budget Ordinance & Fee Schedule 

Presenter:   Town Council   

Attachments:  Yes  

 

Description: 

The Town Council conducted budget workshops from February until June 2017 and held its 
public hearing on the Town Manager’s proposed budget on May 15, 2017. The attached 
Budget Ordinance & Fee Schedule reflects the Manager’s Proposed FY 2017-2018, with 
revisions made by Town Council during budget deliberations. This Ordinance establishes a 
tax rate at $0.38 cents per $100 valuation. 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of the attached FY 2017-2018 Budget Ordinance 
and Fee Schedule. 

 

32



 

 Budget Ordinance 
& Fee Schedule  

Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
 
 

Town of Weaverville 

 

 

Town Council 
 

Dottie Sherrill 
Mayor 

John Penley 
Vice Mayor 

Doug Dearth 
Councilman 

Doug Jackson 
Councilman 

Patrick Fitzsimmons 
Councilman 

Andrew Nagle 
Councilman 

 
---------------------------- 

 

Selena D. Coffey, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager 
Budget Officer 

 

Tonya Dozier, CPA 
Finance Officer 

1 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

33



 

FY 2017- 2018 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S §159-8 requires that the Town of Weaverville appoint a Budget Officer to 
serve at the will of the governing body and Town Council has and hereby appoints the Town Manager to 
serve in such capacity; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-10, departmental budget requests were submitted to 
the Budget Officer by March 31, 2017, and in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-11, the Budget Officer 
submitted a proposed budget and budget message to Town Council on April 17, 2017, which included the 
revenue-neutral property tax rate calculated as thirty-six cents ($0.36) per $100 in valuation per the 
recent Buncombe County Tax Department general reappraisal; and  

 WHEREAS, in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-12(a), the Budget Officer filed the proposed budget 
with the Town Clerk on April 17, 2017 and posted the same on the Town's website, and the Town Clerk 
caused a statement indicating that the proposed budget had been submitted to the governing body and 
was available for public inspection and that a public hearing on the budget was scheduled for May 15, 
2017, to be advertised with the news media on April 26, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, Town Council, in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-12(b) and after proper notice under 
N.C.G.S. §159-12(a), held a public hearing on the proposed budget on May 15, 2017, providing the public 
with an opportunity to attend and provide comment; and 

 WHEREAS, Town Council has carefully considered the anticipated revenues and expenditures 
necessary to provide for the provision of municipal services within the Town of Weaverville during the 
2017-2018 fiscal year and wishes to adopt this Budget Ordinance which reflects a balanced budget in 
accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-8 with the sum of estimated net revenues and appropriated fund balances 
equal to appropriations;  

 BE IT, THEREFORE, ORDAINED by the Town Council for the Town of Weaverville, North 
Carolina:  

Section 1.   General Fund Revenues 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the General Fund for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018: 

GENERAL FUND  
  
REVENUES  
  
Prior Year Taxes $1,600 
Prior Year Interest & Penalties $200 
Ad Valorem Tax $3,110,600 
DMV Tax Revenue $180,000 
Tax Penalties & Interest $5,000 
Utility Tax Revenue $480,000 

2 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

34



 

Beer & Wine Excise Tax $16,000 
Powell Bill Funds $100,000 
Local Government Sales Tax Revenue $1,127,357 
Fire Protection Contract Revenue $1,358,293 
ABC – Distribution to Town $70,000 
ABC – Alcohol Education $6,000 
ABC – Distribution to the Police Department $4,000 
Cell Tower Revenue $16,000 
Miscellaneous Revenue $9,000 
Interest Income $5,000 
Powell Bill Interest Income $150 
Planning & Zoning Fees $20,000 
Fire Inspection Fees $600 
Sale of Surplus Property $5,000 
Appropriated Fund Balance $323,600 
  
TOTAL ESTIMATED GENERAL FUND REVENUES $6,838,400 

 

Section 2.   General Fund Appropriations 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for the operation of the Town 
government and its activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018, in 
accordance with the departmental units heretofore established for the Town: 

APPROPRIATIONS  
  
Governing Body  $235,786 
Administration  $601,920 
Planning Department  $111,196 
Police Department $1,615,642 
Fire Department $1,996,270 
Public Works:  
 Streets Division $676,983 
 Powell Bill Division $119,306 
 Sanitation Division $668,805 
 Recreation Division $334,517 
Contingency $20,000 
Debt Service $457,975 
  
TOTAL GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS $6,838,400 

 

 

 

3 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

35



 

Section 3.   Water Fund Revenues 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Water Fund for the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018: 

WATER FUND  
  
REVENUES  
  
Water Revenue $1,800,000 
Miscellaneous Revenue $20,000 
Water Tap Revenue $18,000 
Capacity Depletion Fees $36,000 
Fees for MSD Collections $45,000 
Appropriated Fund Balance $156,916 
Interest Earned $2,500 
  
TOTAL ESTIMATED WATER FUND REVENUES  $2,078,416 

 

Section 4.   Water Fund Appropriations   

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Water Fund for the operation of the Town’s water 
system for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018, in accordance with the 
departmental divisions heretofore established for the Town: 

WATER FUND  
  
APPROPRIATIONS:  
  
Water Administration $286,468 
Water Production $896,254 
Water Maintenance $671,087 
Contingency $15,000 
Reserve for Bond Payments $209,607 
  
TOTAL WATER FUND APPROPRIATIONS $2,078,416 

 

Section 5.   Ad Valorem Taxes  

An ad valorem tax rate of thirty-eight cents ($0.38) per one hundred dollars ($100.00) valuation of 
taxable property, as listed for taxes as of January 1, 2017 is hereby levied and established as the official 
tax rate for the Town of Weaverville for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018. This 
tax rate is based upon a total projected valuation of $819,074,475 and an estimated collection rate of 
99.0%.  

 

4 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

36



 

Section 6.   Fee and Rate Schedule   

There is hereby adopted an official Fee Schedule (including Water Rates) listing moneys receivable by the 
Town of Weaverville as referenced in Sections 1 and 3 of this Budget Ordinance. The Fee Schedule is 
incorporated as an addendum to this Budget Ordinance.  

Section 7.   Authorizations & Conditions 

The Town Manager, serving also as Budget Officer for the Town of Weaverville, is hereby authorized to 
transfer appropriations as contained herein under the following conditions: 

A. This Budget Ordinance defines departments and divisions as follows: 

General Fund Departments: Divisions: 
 
Governing Body  
Administration  
Planning Department  
Police Department  
Fire Department  
Public Works: • Streets Division 

• Powell Bill Division 
• Sanitation Division 
• Recreation Maintenance Division 

  
Water Fund Departments: Divisions: 
  
Water • Water Administration 

• Water Production 
• Water Maintenance 

 
B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds 

based upon the line item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures 
and revenues, within a department or division without limitation and without a report being 
required.  
 

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 
monthly, between departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same 
fund. The Budget Officer must make an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular 
meeting of Town Council. 
 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as 
approved by Town Council, as a budget amendment.  
 

5 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

37



 

Section 8.   Contingency Concerning Fire Tax Rate 
 
The North Buncombe Fire Tax Rate used in this Budget Ordinance is $0.112 per $100.00 in valuation. 
Since this Budget Ordinance is being adopted prior to the official adoption of the Buncombe County fire 
tax rates, there is some uncertainty in the fire tax rate. Should Buncombe County set the fire tax rate 
applicable within the Town's jurisdiction lower than $0.112 per $100.00 in valuation, then the Town's 
Budget for FY 2017-2018 shall be and is hereby automatically amended to appropriate the resulting 
difference in fire tax revenue from the fund balance within the Town's General Fund. 
 
Section 9.   Utilization of Budget Ordinance 
 
The Budget Ordinance shall be the basis for the financial plan of the Town of Weaverville during the fiscal 
year beginning July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018. The Budget Officer shall administer the budget. The 
accounting system shall establish records, which are in consonance with this budget and this ordinance 
and the appropriate statutes of the State of North Carolina.  
 
Section 10.   Distribution & Documentation 
 
Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, the Budget Officer and the Finance 
Officer to be kept on file by them for direction in the collection of revenues and disbursement of Town 
funds. 

DULY ADOPTED this the 19th day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

    
   Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 
ATTEST:    
    
    

Derek Huninghake, Town Clerk    
    

 

6 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

38



• Fees highlighted in yellow have historically been charged, but not included in the fee schedule. 
• Fees highlighted in green are new fees to be approved. 
• Fees highlighted in blue are changes to the current fees. 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

 

ADOPTED JUNE 19, 2017 

 

 

Town Council 

Dottie Sherrill  John Penley 
Mayor  Vice Mayor 

   
Doug Jackson  Doug Dearth 
Councilman  Councilman 

   
Andrew Nagle  Patrick Fitzsimmons 

Councilman  Councilman 
   

Selena D. Coffey 
Town Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

39



 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE FEES .................................................................................................................. 4 

Returned check fee for non-tax payments ..................................................................................................... 4 

Returned check fee for tax payments ............................................................................................................. 4 

Processing Fees for Electronic Payments ........................................................................................................ 4 

Special Permit Fees ......................................................................................................................................... 4 

Facility Use Fees .............................................................................................................................................. 4 

Lake Louise Fishing License ............................................................................................................................. 4 

Solid Waste/Trash Violation ............................................................................................................................ 4 

Recycling Fee ................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Public Records Request Copying Charge(s) ..................................................................................................... 4 

Annexation Petition Fee .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Fire Hydrant Connection Permit ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Hourly Charges for Equipment/Personnel ...................................................................................................... 5 

Beer & Wine Privilege Licenses ....................................................................................................................... 5 

FIRE DEPARTMENT ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

POLICE DEPARTMENT .................................................................................................................................... 6 

Violations of General Provisions ..................................................................................................................... 6 

Dangerous Dog Violations ............................................................................................................................... 6 

Parks and Recreation Violations (daily) ........................................................................................................... 6 

Truck Traffic on Residential Street .................................................................................................................. 6 

Vegetation Violations ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

Parking Violations ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT ............................................................................................................ 6 

Residential Zoning Permits: ............................................................................................................................. 6 

Commercial / Industrial Zoning Permits: ........................................................................................................ 6 

Sign Permits: .................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Special Use Permit or Related Amendment Fee ............................................................................................. 7 

Rezoning, Map or Text Amendment Fees: ...................................................................................................... 7 

Conditional Zoning District: ............................................................................................................................. 7 

8 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

40



 

 
 

Subdivision Fees: ............................................................................................................................................. 7 

Miscellaneous Planning & Code Enforcement Fees: ....................................................................................... 7 

WATER DEPARTMENT ................................................................................................................................... 7 

Administrative Water Fees .............................................................................................................................. 7 

Water Rates ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Minimum Monthly Water Charges ................................................................................................................. 8 

Tap Charges Including Re-Taps (Inside & Outside Customers) ....................................................................... 8 

Water System Capacity Depletion Fees (Inside & Outside Customers) .......................................................... 9 

Water System Deposits ................................................................................................................................... 9 

Water System Commitment Letter Fees (Inside & Outside Customers) ........................................................ 9 

Charges for Fire Line Connection .................................................................................................................... 9 

 

  

9 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

41



 

 
 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 
 
Returned check fee for non-tax payments ............................................................................................ $25.00 
Returned check fee for tax payments .............................................................................................................................. 10% 
 

Processing Fees for Electronic Payments  
(through ACI Worldwide and www.officialpayments.com) 

Utility Payments .............................................................................................................................................. $2.95 flat fee  
 
Tax Payments ....................................................................................................................2.5% with a $3.95 minimum 

Planning/Zoning Payments and Miscellaneous Payments .............................2.5% with a $1.95 minimum 

Special Permit Fees (Reference Special Events Permit) 

Events with Alcohol ................................................................................................................................................. $200.00 
Events with No Alcohol .......................................................................................................................................... $300.00  

Facility Use Fees (Reference Facility Use Policy & Application) 

Facility Resident 
per Hour 

Non-Resident 
per Hour Deposit 

Town Hall Community Room $100.00 $300.00 $500.00 

Lake Louise Community Center & Parking Lot $50.00 $200.00 $250.00 

Town Hall Community Room Kitchen $20.00 $20.00  

Lake Louise Fishing License                                   

Monthly, Town Residents ............................................................................................................................................... $10.00 
Monthly, Non-Residents .................................................................................................................................................. $20.00 
Annually, Town Residents .............................................................................................................................................. $20.00 
Annually, Non-Residents................................................................................................................................................. $40.00 
 

Solid Waste/Trash Violation............................................................................................................................................ $50.00 
 
Recycling Fee (included on monthly utility bill) .......................................................................................................... $2.59 
 
 

 

 

Public Records Request Copying Charge(s) 

10 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

42



 

 
 

8 ½” x 11" black & white single-sided hardcopy (per page)............................................................................. $0.02 
8 ½” x 11" color single-sided hardcopy (per page) .............................................................................................. $0.09 
8 ½” x 11" black & white double-sided hardcopy (per page).................................................. .........................  $0.03 
8 ½” x 11" color double-sided hardcopy (per page) ............................................................................................ $0.18 
Electronic Copies ........................................................................................................................................................No Charge 
(Applicable postage will also be charged for mailing hard copy documents.) 

    
Annexation Petition Fee .................................................................................................................................................. $500.00 
 
Fire Hydrant Connection Permit ................................................................................................................................... $30.00 

Hourly Charges for Equipment/Personnel 
 

Equipment 
Police Car ............................................................................................................................................................................. $15.00 
16” Chain Saw ................................................................................................................................................................ ...... $2.00 
25” Chain Saw ................................................................................................................................................................ ...... $3.00 
Pumper Truck ................................................................................................................................................................ .... $80.00 
Ladder Truck ................................................................................................................................................................ .. $150.00 
Ton Truck (P/U Brush Truck ...................................................................................................................................... $20.00 
Command Vehicles ..........................................................................................................................................................  $10.00 
Tanker ................................................................................................................................................................................... $30.00 
 
Personnel 
Firefighters, Police Officers, Public Works Employees..................................................................................... $25.00 
Captain .................................................................................................................................................................................. $30.00 
Chief Officers ................................................................................................................................................................ ...... $35.00 

 

Beer & Wine Privilege Licenses 

Note: Municipalities are permitted to tax establishments who offer beer and wine for on and off premises consumption 
as follows: 

Beer (on premises) ................................................................................................................................................................ .... $15.00 
Beer (off premises) ................................................................................................................................................................ ....  $5.00 
Wine (on premises) ................................................................................................................................................................. $15.00 
Wine (off premises) ................................................................................................................................................................. $10.00 
Beer and/or Wine Wholesale...................................................................................................................................  up to $37.50 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
Plans Review Permit .............................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
Fuel Dispensing Permit ........................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 

11 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

43



 

 
 

Other potential charges from the Fire Department or Fire Marshal’s Office due to fines associated with fire code and fire 
lane violations. 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
Violations of General Provisions .................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
(Unless otherwise specifically provided, $100.00 charge for each separate and distinct violation.) 
  
Dangerous Dog Violations 
 
Class I:   $250.00 first day, and $250.00 each subsequent day of continuous violation. 
 
Class II:  $500.00 first day, and $500.00 each subsequent day of continuous violation. 
 
Class III:  $1,000.00 first day, and $1,000.00 each subsequent day of continuous violation. 
  
Parks and Recreation Violations (daily) ................................................................................................................... $25.00 
(Includes dogs on walking trail, and vehicles on grass/trail) 
  
Truck Traffic on Residential Street ............................................................................................................................... $50.00 
  
Vegetation Violations ............................................................................................................................................................ $50.00 
  
Parking Violations .................................................................................................................................................................. $10.00 
(Includes all parking violations) 

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Residential Zoning Permits: 
Single Family Dwelling ........................................................................................... $150.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 1,200 
Multi Family Dwelling ................................................................................................. $300.00 plus $50.00 per dwelling unit 
Secondary Dwelling .................................................................................................................................................................. $150.00 
Addition to Dwelling .................................................................................................. $75.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 1,200 
Accessory Structure ....................................................................................................... $50.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 100 
Deck/Porch ...................................................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 
Home Occupation .......................................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 
Internal Up-fit ................................................................................................................................................................ ................. $50.00 
Temporary Structure/Use ......................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 

Commercial / Industrial Zoning Permits: 
Commercial/Industrial Structure ...................................................................... $350.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 2,000 
Commercial/Industrial Addition ........................................................................ $100.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 2,000 
Accessory Structure ....................................................................................................... $50.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 500 
Internal Up-Fit ............................................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
Telecommunication Tower ....................................................................... $4,000.00 per location or max allowed by law 

12 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

44



 

 
 

Telecommunication Tower (Co-location, Microcell, Concealed) .............   $500.00 per location or max allowed by law 
Temporary Structure/Use ...................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 

Sign Permits: 
Sign Permit Fee .................................................................. $50.00 plus additional based upon total surface area of sign 
Up to 32 sq. ft. ................................................................................................................................................................ ................. $25.00 
33 - 64 sq. ft. .................................................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 
65 - 96 sq. ft. ................................................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 
97 sq. ft. plus ...................................................................................................................................... $150.00 plus $2.50 per sq. ft. 
 
Special Use Permit or Related Amendment Fee ..................................................................................................... $500.00 

Rezoning, Map or Text Amendment Fees: 
Less Than 1 Acre ........................................................................................................................................................................ $350.00 
1 - 3 Acres ................................................................................................................................................................ ...................... $450.00 
4 - 9 Acres ................................................................................................................................................................ ...................... $550.00 
10 - 25 Acres ................................................................................................................................................................ ................ $750.00 
25 Acres plus................................................................................................................................................................ ................ $900.00 

Conditional Zoning District: 
Less Than 1 Acres ...................................................................................................................................................................... $350.00 
1 - 3 Acres ................................................................................................................................................................ ...................... $500.00 
4 - 9 Acres ................................................................................................................................................................ ...................... $750.00 
10 - 25 Acres ................................................................................................................................................................ ............ $1,500.00 
25 Acres Plus ........................................................................................................................................................................... $2,500.00 

Subdivision Fees: 
Minor Subdivision..................................................................................................................................... $100.00 plus $25 per lot 
Major Subdivision ..................................................................................................................................... $300.00 plus $25 per lot 

Miscellaneous Planning & Code Enforcement Fees: 
Initial Review by Zoning Administrator ....................................................................................................................... No charge 
Zoning Verification Letter ......................................................................................................................................................... $25.00 
Gaming Terminal Fees (per machine) ........................................................................................................................... $1,000.00 
Variance ...................................................................................................... $250.00 plus $50.00 for each variance requested 
Interpretation ................................................................................................................................................................ .............. $500.00 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

Administrative Water Fees 
 
Account Establishment Service Charge ............................................................................................................................ $25.00 
Seasonal Reconnect Fee .......................................................................................................................................................... $20.00 
Reconnect Fee ............................................................................................................................................................................. $60.00 
Flow Test Fee ................................................................................................................................................................ ............... $40.00 

13 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

45



 

 
 

Meter Testing at Customer Request (Charged only if meter is operational) .................................................... $40.00 

Water Rates 
 
For water used INSIDE the Corporate limits of the Town: 
 
The first 3,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly .......................................................... $7.96 per 1,000 gallons 
The next 22,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ...................................................... $8.77 per 1,000 gallons 
The next 75,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ...................................................... $9.53 per 1,000 gallons 
The next 300,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................. $10.30 per 1,000 gallons 
All over 500,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................... $11.07 per 1,000 gallons 
 
For water used OUTSIDE the Corporate limits of the Town: 
 
The first 3,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ....................................................... $15.91 per 1,000 gallons 
The next 22,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................... $17.54 per 1,000 gallons 
The next 175,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................. $19.07 per 1,000 gallons 
The next 300,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................. $20.60 per 1,000 gallons 
All over 500,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................... $22.13 per 1,000 gallons 

Minimum Monthly Water Charges 
 
The minimum monthly charge for water service shall be according to the size of the meter through which 
water is delivered to each customer in accordance with the following schedule: 
 

Meter Size Minimum Monthly 
Usage 

Inside Town Outside Town 

⅝” 2,000 gallons $15.91 $31.82 
¾” 4,000 gallons $32.49 $64.98 
1” 6,000 gallons $49.83 $99.66 

1½” 11,200 gallons $94.86 $189.72 
2” 18,200 gallons $155.50 $311.00 
3” 36,200 gallons $320.08 $640.16 
4” 58,500 gallons $511.53 $1,023.06 
6” 112,000 gallons $1,035.20 $2,070.40 
8” 180,000 gallons $1,676.78 $3,353.56 

10” 258,000 gallons $2,457.74 $4,915.48 

Tap Charges Including Re-Taps (Inside & Outside Customers) 
 

Meter Size Tap Fee 
⅝” and ¾” $1,000.00 

1” $1,500.00 
1½” $3,250.00 

2” $4,000.00 

14 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

46



 

 
 

 

Water System Capacity Depletion Fees (Inside & Outside Customers) 
 

Size of Connection Rated Maximum Capacity Depletion Fee 
⅝” 20 gallons $600.00 
1” 50 gallons $1,500.00 

1½” 100 gallons $3,000.00 
2” 160 gallons $4,800.00 
3” 300 gallons $9,000.00 
4” 500 gallons $14,950.00 
6” 1,000 gallons $29,900.00 

 

Water System Deposits 
 

Size of Connection Inside Town Limits  
Amount 

Outside Town Limits 
Amount 

⅝” x ¾” $80.00 $160.00 
1” $100.00 $200.00 

1½” $180.00 $360.00 
2” $300.00 $600.00 
3” $600.00 $1,200.00 
4” $1,000.00 $2,000.00 

 

Water System Commitment Letter Fees (Inside & Outside Customers) 
 

Size of Connection Inside Town Limits Outside Town Limits 
⅝” $35.00 $70.00 
1” $50.00 $100.00 

1½” $100.00 $200.00 
2” $160.00 $320.00 
3” $300.00 $600.00 
4” $500.00 $1,000.00 
6” $1,000.00 $2,000.00 

Charges for Fire Line Connection 
 
All fire line connections on the water system for the Town of Weaverville shall be subject to a minimum 
monthly charge based upon the square inch size of the line at the following rate: 
 
INSIDE Corporate limits of the Town:  $1.88 per square inch/month 
 

15 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

47



 

 
 

OUTSIDE Corporate limits of the Town: $5.56 per square inch/month 
 
Fire line charges shall be levied by the Water Department according to the following schedule: 
 

Diameter of Fire Line Square Inch Size Inside Town Outside Town 
2” & smaller 3.14 $5.89 $17.46 

3” 7.07 $13.29 $39.31 
4” 12.56 $23.61 $69.83 
6” 28.26 $53.13 $157.13 
8” 50.24 $94.45 $279.33 

10” 78.50 $147.58 $436.46 
If during any month the detector-check valve meter for the fire line shows consumption of more than 100 
gallons of water on the fire line the customer (owner) shall be billed, in lieu of the minimum, according to 
the following schedule: 
 

Fire Line Size Gallons Inside Town Outside Town 
2” 18,000 gallons $133.94 $267.88 
3” 36,000 gallons $277.27 $554.54 
4” 56,000 gallons $441.78 $883.56 
6” 112,000 gallons $902.45 $1,804.90 
8” 180,000 gallons $1,461.80 $2,923.60 

10” 258,000 gallons $2,143.61 $4,287.22 
 
Note: For all multi-lot or unit developments, the commitment letter fee shall apply to each connection. 
 
 

16 
PROPOSED JUNE 19, 2017

48



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 19, 2017   

SUBJECT: ASPCA Waterline Acceptance and Authorization for Staff Level 
Approval 

PRESENTER:   Public Works Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Approved Easement Plat 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The American Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (ASPCA) project has 
progressed such that we expect that all Town acceptance criteria for the waterline, vault 
and vault drain will be completed within the next few weeks. The Public Works Director is 
therefore requesting that Town Council go ahead and accept the waterline extension and 
related improvements into the Town’s water system subject to staff level approval by the 
Public Works Director, Town Manager and Town Attorney. The Public Works Director also 
urges Town Council to set an improvement defects guaranty at $8,000.00 to cover any 
defects that might be discovered within three years of our acceptance. 

Staff will be present at tonight’s meeting to answer any questions that Council might have 
regarding this matter before any action is considered. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Council discussion and action to (1) accept the waterline extension and related 
improvement into the Town’s water system subject to staff level approval by the Town 
Manager, Town Attorney and Public Works Director, and (2) set the improvement defects 
guaranty amount at $8,000.00. 

49



50



51



52



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 19, 2017  

SUBJECT: Board Appointments – Zoning Board of Adjustment  

PRESENTER:   Mayor Sherrill 

ATTACHMENTS: Zoning Board of Adjustment Roster 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

There have been two board resignations received from the Zoning Board of Adjustment that the 
Mayor would like to make Town Council aware of.  At the conclusion of the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment meeting on June 12, 2017, Al Root resigned his regular seat on the board so that he can 
concentrate his efforts on his upcoming candidacy for mayor. On June 13, 2017, staff received 
notice that Jan Rector has had to resign her alternate seat upon the recommendation of the realty 
office that she works for in order to avoid any possibility of conflicts of interest related to the 
matters that might come before the Zoning Board of Adjustment.  

Roger Parkin, who has been an active member of the Board even though he is currently serving as 
an alternate member, has requested to be considered for a regular seat. All other applications that 
have been received for the Zoning Board of Adjustment have previously been provided to Town 
Council. 

The Mayor recommends that Roger Parkin be appointed to the unexpired term for the regular seat 
previously held by Al Root. The Mayor notes that Town Council will be reviewing this board in 
August for the purpose of filling those seats with terms expiring in September 2017 and Town 
Council could consider the vacancies as well as reappointments at that time.  

The Town Attorney notes that the Table of Uses as envisioned by the Planning and Zoning Board 
does away with all special use permits, which, if adopted, will impact the number and intensity of 
the matters coming before the Zoning Board of Adjustment.   

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Mayor recommends a motion to appoint Roger Parkin to the Zoning Board of Adjustment as a 
regular member for the unexpired term of the seat previously held by Al Root. 

53



Updated as of June 13, 2017 
 

WEAVERVILLE 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Regularly meets 2nd Monday of the month at 7:00 pm 
 in Town Hall Council Chambers 
 

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT  

TERM            
(3 YEARS) 

Jeff McKenna 
Chairman 

30 Yost Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
484-9202; (cell) 231-8811 
jeffmckenna3@gmail.com 

August 2016 September    
2016 – 2018 

John “Tycer” Lewis 
Vice-Chairman 

14 South College Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 279-4290 
tycerrenovations@gmail.com  

September 
2016 

September 
2016-2017 

Paul Clauhs 
Regular Member 

P.O. Box 483 
74 Hamburg Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
768-6679 

August 2016 September 
2016 – 2019 

Cynthia Wright 
Regular Member 

88 Hillcrest Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
658-1579; (cell)703-862-8428 
wright.cindy2011@gmail.com  

August 2016 September 
2016 – 2018 

Regular Member 
 
 

  September  
2016 – 2017 

Roger Parkin 
Alternate Member 
 
 

57 Church Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
828-337-2868 
rdplimey@gmail.com  

September 
2016 

September 
2016 - 2017 

Alternate Member 
 
 

   September 
2016 – 2019  

 
James Eller 
Zoning 
Administrator 

484-7002 
jeller@weavervillenc.org  

  

Jennifer Jackson 
Town Attorney 

484-7003; 828-442-1858 
jjackson@weavervillenc.org  
 

  

 
 

54

mailto:jeffmckenna3@gmail.com
mailto:tycerrenovations@gmail.com
mailto:wright.cindy2011@gmail.com
mailto:rdplimey@gmail.com
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 19, 2017   

SUBJECT: Update on Table of Uses 

PRESENTER:   Town Planner 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff will be present at tonight's meeting to update Mayor and Town Council on the Table of 
Uses project.  

As a reminder, Town Council has scheduled a special called meeting with the Planning and 
Zoning Board for Tuesday, June 27, 2017 at 6pm at the Fire Department Training Room, to 
begin discussions of the substance of the proposed Table of Uses. Materials related to that 
joint meeting will be distributed in advance of that meeting. 

 

72


	June-19-17 Agenda
	Monthly Tax Report
	Tax Releases and Refunds
	Resolution Setting Municipal Election Filing Fee
	Summary Cover & Budget Amend - PW Salary Transfer 6-19-17-signed
	Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request of Shakamar Investment Group - 8 Acres on Reems Creek Road
	Surplus Personal Property Disposition - Fire Department
	PROPOSED Budget Ord_Fee Sch 6-14-17
	Budget Ord Fee Sch Cover
	FY2017-2018 Budget Ordinance_June 14_2017
	FY2018 Fee Schedule_June 14_2017
	GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE FEES
	Processing Fees for Electronic Payments
	Lake Louise Fishing License
	Hourly Charges for Equipment/Personnel
	Beer & Wine Privilege Licenses

	FIRE DEPARTMENT
	POLICE DEPARTMENT
	PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT
	Residential Zoning Permits:
	Commercial / Industrial Zoning Permits:
	Sign Permits:
	Rezoning, Map or Text Amendment Fees:
	Conditional Zoning District:
	Subdivision Fees:
	Miscellaneous Planning & Code Enforcement Fees:

	WATER DEPARTMENT
	Administrative Water Fees
	Water Rates
	Minimum Monthly Water Charges
	Tap Charges Including Re-Taps (Inside & Outside Customers)
	Water System Capacity Depletion Fees (Inside & Outside Customers)
	Water System Deposits
	Water System Commitment Letter Fees (Inside & Outside Customers)
	Charges for Fire Line Connection



	ASPCA Waterline Extension Acceptance and Staff Level Approval
	Creekside Phase III Waterline Acceptance
	Board Appointments - Zoning Board of Adjustment
	44 Central Avenue - Major Subdivision - Concept and Preliminary Plan Approval
	Update on Table of Uses



